

HI7000/4 series

Supplementary Information

R20UT0478EJ0102 Rev.1.02 Apr. 1, 2012

This document explains the specification change and the manual correction caused after the "HI7000/4 series User's manual (REJ10B0060-0600)" is issued.

Contents

1.	The Kernel Reserved Vectors to Return from Direct Interrupt handler (only in HI7000/4)	
1.1		
1.2		
1.3		
1.4		
1.5		
1.6	Notes when SH-2A is used	3
2.	Enabled the VTA_REGBANK Attribute for Vector #20 to #31 (only in HI7000/4)	. 3
3.	Large Memory Pool	.3
4.	Various Area Sizes Specified by Configurator	.4
4.1	CFG_TSKSTKSZ : Total Size of Dynamic Stack Area	4
4.2	2 CFG_DTQSZ : Total Size of Data Queue Area	4
4.3	3 CFG_MBFSZ : Total Size of Message Buffer Area	5
4.4	CFG_MPFSZ : Total Size of Fixed-size Memory Pool Area	5
4.5	6 CFG_MPLSZ : Total Size of Variable-size Memory Pool Area	. 5
5.	Manual Correction	.6
5.1	"2.3 Processing Units and Precedence"	6
5.2	2 "2.4.1 Task Context State and Non-Task Context State"	6
5.3	3 "3.10.3 Send Message to Mailbox"	6
5.4	"3.14.1 Create Variable-Size Memory Pool"	6
5.5	5 "3.20.1 Define Interrupt Handler"	7
5.6	3.20.2 Change Interrupt Mask"	7
5.7	' "3.26.1 Initialize Cache"	7
5.8	⁸ "Figure 4.4 Example of a C Language Normal Interrupt Handler "	8
5.9	"Table 4.9 Rules on Using Registers in a Normal Interrupt Handler (HI7000/4)"	8
5.1	0 Contents of Stack at Initiation of CPU Exception Handler	8
5.1	1 "Table C.2 Additional Stack Size of the Call Routine and the Handlers"	10
5.1	2 "Table C.3 Stack Size of Each Function"	10
- 4	3 "Table C.6 Interrupt Handler Stack Size"	10



1. The Kernel Reserved Vectors to Return from Direct Interrupt handler (only in HI7000/4)

1.1 Summary

In the past version, interrupt handler for vector #25 and #26 are used to return from direct interrupt handler. In V.2.02 Release 05 or later, you can select "#25 and #26" or "#62 and #63" for the vectors to return from direct interrupt handler.

The reason for this change is that there is a possibility that new interrupt factors are assigned to vector #25 and #26.

Related pages in the user's manual:

- "4.4.2 Reserved TRAP (Only in HI7000/4)"

Therefore, the following specifications are changed.

1.2 def_inh, idef_inh, def_exc, idef_exc, vdef_trp, ivdef_trp Service Calls

In the past version, these service calls return error E_PAR when vector #25 or #26 is required. In V.2.02 Release 05 or later, interrupt handlers for vector #25 and #26 can be defined by using these service calls.

Related pages in the user's manual:

- "3.20.1 Define Interrupt Handler (def_inh, idef_inh)"

- "3.22.1 Define CPU Exception Handler (def_exc, idef_exc)"

- "3.22.2 Define CPU Exception (TRAPA Instruction Exception) Handler (vdef_trp, ivdef_trp)"

The large memory pool function is the implementation to improve the processing time of the variable-size memory pool function.

1.3 The Configurator

In the past version, interrupt handler for vector #25 and #26 cannot be defined by using the configurator. In V.2.02 Release 05 or later, interrupt handlers for vector #25 and #26 can be defined by using the Configurator.

1.4 Direct Interrupt Handler

In the past version, the "tn=25" or "tn=26" is required for "#pragma interrupt" when the interrupt level is less than or equal to the kernel interrupt mask level. In V.2.02 Release 05 or later, these are changed to "tn=TRAP_RET_INT_BANK" and "tn=TRAP_RET_INT". The TRAP_RET_INT_BANK and TRAP_RET_INT are macros which are added in the "kernel.h" file.

Related pages in the user's manual:

- "4.8.2 Direct Interrupt Handler (HI7000/4)"



1.5 Select Kernel Reserved Vector

The kernel reserved vector can be selected by compiler option "-def=NEW_RET_INT" for direct interrupt handler source files and "kernel_def.c".

Item	Use "-def=NEW_RET_INT"	Not use "-def=NEW_RET_INT"
Vectors used to return from direct interrupt handler	#62 and #63	#25 and #26
Definition of TRAP_RET_INT_BANK	62	25
Definition of TRAP_RET_INT	63	26

1.6 Notes when SH-2A is used

When either of following SH-2A or SH2A-FPU MCU is used, it is required to select "62 and 63" as kernel reserved vectors.

- MCUs from which interrupt factors are assigned in vector #20 #31
- SH725xx such as SH7250 series

2. Enabled the VTA_REGBANK Attribute for Vector #20 to #31 (only in HI7000/4)

In the past version, the VTA_REGBANK attribute for interrupt handler can be specified only for vector #14 and #64 or more. In V.2.02 Release 05 or later, the VTA_REGBANK attribute can be specified for vector #20 to #31 in addition to the past.

3. Large Memory Pool

Refer to "HI7000/4, HI7700/4, HI7750/4, HI7200/MP Large Memory Pool" (R20UT0476EJ0200, Rev.2.00).



4. Various Area Sizes Specified by Configurator

This chapter explains the following area sizes.

- 1. CFG_TSKSTKSZ : Total size of dynamic stack area
- 2. CFG_DTQSZ : Total size of data queue area
- 3. CFG_MBFSZ : Total size of message buffer area
- 4. CFG_MPFSZ : Total size of fixed-size memory pool area
- 5. CFG_MPLSZ : Total size of variable-size memory pool area

4.1 CFG_TSKSTKSZ : Total Size of Dynamic Stack Area

Please specify as CFG_TSKSTKSZ the value calculated by the following formula, or more. If not, the operation which creates task may fail.

 $\sum (stksz + 16) + 28$

(1) Tasks created by configurator

Please calculate as "stksz" the value specified as [Stack Size] edit box in [Creation of Task] dialog box.

However, it is outside the object of calculation when [Specify Address] radio button is chosen.

(2) Tasks created by cre_tsk, acre_tsk, icre_tsk or iacre_tsk service call

Please calculate as "stksz" the value specified as T_CTSK.stksz.

However, it is outside the object of calculation when specified except NULL as T_CTSK.stk.

4.2 CFG_DTQSZ : Total Size of Data Queue Area

Please specify as CFG_DTQSZ the value calculated by the following formula, or more. If not, the operation which creates data queue may fail.

 $\sum (dtqcnt \times 4 + 16) + 28$

(1) Data queues created by configurator

Please calculate as "dtqcnt" the value specified as [Number of Data] edit box in [Creation of Data Queue] dialog box.

However, it is outside the object of calculation when zero is specified as [Number of Data] edit box.

(2) Data queues created by cre_dtq, acre_dtq, icre_dtq or iacre_dtq service call

Please calculate as "*dtqcnt*" the value specified as T_CDTQ.dtqcnt.

However, it is outside the object of calculation when specified zero as T_CDTQ.dtqcnt.



4.3 CFG_MBFSZ : Total Size of Message Buffer Area

Please specify as CFG_MBFSZSZ the value calculated by the following formula, or more. If not, the operation which creates message buffer may fail.

 $\sum (mbfsz + 16) + 28$

(1) Message buffers created by configurator

Please calculate as "mbfsz" the value specified as [Size] edit box in [Creation of Message Buffer] dialog box.

However, it is outside the object of calculation when zero is specified as [Size] edit box.

(2) Message buffers created by cre_mbf, acre_mbf, icre_mbf or iacre_mbf service call

Please calculate as "mbfsz" the value specified as T_CMBF,mbfsz.

However, it is outside the object of calculation when specified zero as T_CMBF,mbfsz.

4.4 CFG_MPFSZ : Total Size of Fixed-size Memory Pool Area

Please specify as CFG_MPFSZ the value calculated by the following formula, or more. If not, the operation which creates fixed-size memory pool may fail.

 $\sum (blksz \times blkcnt + 16) + 28$

(1) Fixed-size memory pools created by configurator

Please calculate as "*blksz*" the value specified as [Size] edit box in [Creation of Fixed-size Memory pool] dialog box, and as "*blkcnt*" the value specified as [Number of Blocks] edit box in that dialog box.

However, it is outside the object of calculation when [Specify Address] radio button is chosen.

(2) Fixed-size memory pools created by cre_mpf, acre_mpf, icre_mpf or iacre_mpf service call

Please calculate as *"blksz*" the value specified as T_CMPF.blksz, and as *"blkcnt*" the value specified as T_CMPF.blkcnt. However, it is outside the object of calculation when specified except NULL as T_CMPF.mpf.

4.5 CFG_MPLSZ : Total Size of Variable-size Memory Pool Area

Please specify as CFG_MPFSZ the value calculated by the following formula, or more. If not, the operation which creates variable-size memory pool may fail.

 $\sum (mplsz + 16) + 28$

(1) Variable-size memory pools created by configurator

Please calculate as "*mplsz*" the value specified as [Size] edit box in [Creation of Variable-size Memory pool] dialog box. However, it is outside the object of calculation when [Specify Address] radio button is chosen.

(2) Variable-size memory pools created by cre_mpl, acre_mpl, icre_mpl or iacre_mp service call

Please calculate as "mplsz" the value specified as T_CMPL.mplsz.

However, it is outside the object of calculation when specified except NULL as T_CMPL.mpl.



5. Manual Correction

This chapter explains correction of "HI7000/4 series User's Manual (REJ10B0060-0600)".

5.1 "2.3 Processing Units and Precedence"

Corresponding section: Page 6

Content of correction:

Add following description.

When a service call is called from a task, all tasks are not executed until the service call is completed.

5.2 "2.4.1 Task Context State and Non-Task Context State"

Corresponding section: Page 8, next to Table 2.1

Content of correction:

Correct as follows.

The following items of processing are executed in non-task context.

- Interrupt handler
- Time event handlers (cyclic handler, alarm handler, and overrun handler)
- The processing executed by changing the interrupt mask to a value other than 0 using the chg_ims service call

Note that extended service calls initiated in the above processing states are also executed in non-task context, and that the CPU exception handler is executed in the same context as before any CPU exception occurs.

5.3 "3.10.3 Send Message to Mailbox"

Corresponding section: Page 150, Error Code

Content of correction:

Description for E_ID is corrected as follows.

E_ID [p] Invalid ID number (mbxid ≤ 0 , or mbxid > CFG_MAXMBXID)

5.4 "3.14.1 Create Variable-Size Memory Pool"

Corresponding section: Page 187, Error Code

Content of correction:

Following description is added to explanation of E_PAR.

pk_cmpl->minblksz is other than a multiple of four.



5.5 "3.20.1 Define Interrupt Handler"

Corresponding section: Page 237, Packet Structure of T_DINH

Content of correction:

Correct as follows.

```
typedef struct t_dinh
   ATR inhatr; 0 4 Handler attribute
   FP inthdr; +4 4 Handler address
   UINT inhsr; +8 4 SR at initiation (ignored in the HI7000/4)
}T_DINH;
```

5.6 "3.20.2 Change Interrupt Mask"

Corresponding section: Page 240, Error Code

Content of correction:

Following description is added .

5.7 "3.26.1 Initialize Cache"

Corresponding section: Page 280, Table 3.81, "CCR and RAMCR setting" for "TCAC_IC_WPD"

Content of correction:

Correct as follows.

Attribute	Value	Description		CCR and RAMCR setting
TCAC_IC_WPD	H'00200000	When specify	Does not predict the instruction cache way	RAMCR.ICWPD = 1
		When not specify	Predicts the instruction cache way	RAMCR.ICWPD = 0



5.8 "Figure 4.4 Example of a C Language Normal Interrupt Handler "

Corresponding section: Page 307, Figure 4.4

Content of correction:

Correct as follows.

5.9 "Table 4.9 Rules on Using Registers in a Normal Interrupt Handler (HI7000/4)"

Corresponding section: Page 309, Figure 4.4, Note 4

Content of correction:

Correct as follows.

Only when the interrupts using the register bank is serviced in the SH-2A or SH2A-FPU, the end condition is not required.

5.10 Contents of Stack at Initiation of CPU Exception Handler

Corresponding section: Page 327 - 328,

Content of correction:

Correct as follows.

(3) Contents of Stack at Initiation

When a CPU exception occurs, the kernel saves the register contents in the stack. When execution is returned from a CPU exception handler, the kernel restores these register contents from the stack.



HI7000/4 series

(a) HI7000/4			
s ta c	(nointor (P.15)	R0 atCPU exception	0
3 12 0		R1 atCPU exception	
		R 2 at CPU exception	+8
		R3 atCPU exception	+12
		R4 atCPU exception	+16
		R 5 at C P U exception	+20
		R6 atCPU exception	+24
		R7 atCPU exception	+28
		PR atCPU exception	+32
		PC atCPU exception	+36
		SR atCPU exception	+40
Stack pointerbefor(PU exception_	→ Stack before CPU exception	+44
·			
(b) HI7700/4			
Stac	(pointer (R15)_	RO_BANKO atCPU exception	0
		R1_BANKO atCPU exception	+4
		R 2_BANKO at CPU exception	+8
		R3_BANK0 atCPU exception	+12
		R4_BANKO atCPU exception	+16
		R5_BANKO atCPU exception	+20 +24
		R6_BANKO atCPU exception R7_BANKO atCPU exception	+28
		PR atCPU exception	+32
		PC (SPC) at CPU exception	+36
		SR (SSR) at CPU exception	+40
Stack pointarhofor(PIL avaantion	Stack before CPU exception	+40
Slack pointer belor	FU exception_		+44
(c) HI7750/4			
S the s	(nomber (P1E)	RO_BANKO atCPU exception	0
2 (a)	(pointer (KIS)_	R1_BANKO atCPU exception	+4
		R 2_BANKO at CPU exception	+8
		R3_BANKO atCPU exception	+12
		R4_BANKO atCPU exception	+16
		R5_BANKO atCPU exception	+20
		R6_BANKO atCPU exception	+24
		R7_BANKO atCPU exception	+28
		PR atCPU exception	+32
		FPSCR atCPU exception	+36
		PC (SPC) at CPU excention	+40
		PC (SPC) at CPU exception	+40 +44
Stack pointer befor (PIL exception	SR(SSR)atCPU exception	+40 +44 +48



5.11 "Table C.2 Additional Stack Size of the Call Routine and the Handlers"

Corresponding section: Page 409

Content of correction:

The Item "Task exception processing routine" of Table C.2 is corrected below.

Additional Size (Byte)			
ltem	HI7000/4	HI7700/4	HI7750/4
Task exception processing routine	144	144 *2	152

5.12 "Table C.3 Stack Size of Each Function"

Corresponding section: Page 410

Content of correction:

The Item "texrtn" of Table C.3 is corrected below.

Function	Size (Byte)	Note
texrtn	144 + 16 = 160	Start function of task exception processing routine, No TA_COP0 attribute included, CFG_NEWMPL is not selected

5.13 "Table C.6 Interrupt Handler Stack Size"

Corresponding section: Page 413

Content of correction:

The Item "Calls service call" of Table C.6 is corrected below.

	Stack S		Size (Byte)	
	HI7000/4		HI7700/4	HI7750/4
Item	Direct Interrupt Handler	Normal Interrupt Handler	_	
Calls service call	140	140	140 ^{*3}	144



Website and Support

Renesas Electronics Website <u>http://www.renesas.com/</u>

Inquiries

http://www.renesas.com/inquiry

All trademarks and registered trademarks are the property of their respective owners.



Revision Record

Rev.	Date	Description		
		Page	Summary	
1.00	Jan 15, 2011	-	First Edition issued	
1.01	Oct 28, 2011	3	"Large Memory Pool" has been added.	
		6	Manual correction "3.10.3 Send Message to Mailbox" has been added.	
		6	Manual correction "3.14.1 Create Variable-Size Memory Pool" has been added.	
		7	Manual correction "3.20.1 Define Interrupt Handler" has been added.	
		7	Manual correction "3.20.2 Change Interrupt Mask" has been added.	
		7	Manual correction "3.26.1 Initialize Cache" has been added.	
1.02	Apr 1, 2012	4	"Various Area Sizes Specified by Configurator" has been added.	
		10	Manual correction "Table C.2 Additional Stack Size of the Call Routine and the Handlers" has been added.	
		10	Manual correction "Table C.3 Stack Size of Each Function" has been added.	
		10	Manual correction "Table C.6 Interrupt Handler Stack Size" has been added.	

1. All information included in this document is current as of the date this document is issued. Such information, however, is subject to change without any prior notice. Before purchasing or using any Renesas Electronics products listed herein, please confirm the latest product information with a Renesas Electronics sales office. Also, please pay regular and careful attention to additional and different information to be disclosed by Renesas Electronics such as that disclosed through our website. 2. Renesas Electronics does not assume any liability for infringement of patents, copyrights, or other intellectual property rights of third parties by or arising from the use of Renesas Electronics products or technical information described in this document. No license, express, implied or otherwise, is granted hereby under any patents, copyrights or other intellectual property rights of Renesas Electronics or You should not alter, modify, copy, or otherwise misappropriate any Renesas Electronics product, whether in whole or in part. Descriptions of circuits, software and other related information in this document are provided only to illustrate the operation of semiconductor products and application examples. You are fully responsible for the incorporation of these circuits, software, and information in the design of your equipment. Renesas Electronics assumes no responsibility for any losses incurred by you or third parties arising from the use of these circuits, software, or information 5. When exporting the products or technology described in this document, you should comply with the applicable export control laws and regulations and follow the procedures required by such laws and regulations. You should not use Renesas Electronics products or the technology described in this document for any purpose relating to military applications or use by the military, including but not limited to the development of weapons of mass destruction. Renesas Electronics products and technology may not be used for or incorporated into any products or systems whose manufacture, use, or sale is prohibited under any applicable domestic or foreign laws or regulations 6. Renesas Electronics has used reasonable care in preparing the information included in this document, but Renesas Electronics does not warrant that such information is error free. Renesas Electronics assumes no liability whatsoever for any damages incurred by you resulting from errors in or omissions from the information included herein. Renesas Electronics products are classified according to the following three quality grades: "Standard", "High Quality", and "Specific". The recommended applications for each Renesas Electronics product depends on the product's quality grade, as indicated below. You must check the quality grade of each Renesas Electronics product before using it in a particular application. You may not use any Renesas Electronics product for any application categorized as "Specific" without the prior written consent of Renesas Electronics. Further, you may not use any Renesas Electronics product for any application for which it is not intended without the prior written consent of Renesas Electronics. Renesas Electronics shall not be in any way liable for any damages or losses incurred by you or third parties arising from the use of any Renesas Electronics product for an application categorized as "Specific" or for which the product is not intended where you have failed to obtain the prior written consent of Renesas Electronics. The quality grade of each Renesas Electronics product is "Standard" unless otherwise expressly specified in a Renesas Electronics data sheets or data books, etc. "Standard": Computers; office equipment; communications equipment; test and measurement equipment; audio and visual equipment; home electronic appliances; machine tools; personal electronic equipment; and industrial robots. "High Quality": Transportation equipment (automobiles, trains, ships, etc.); traffic control systems; anti-disaster systems; anti-crime systems; safety equipment; and medical equipment not specifically designed for life support "Specific": Aircraft; aerospace equipment; submersible repeaters; nuclear reactor control systems; medical equipment or systems for life support (e.g. artificial life support devices or systems), surgical implantations, or healthcare intervention (e.g. excision, etc.), and any other applications or purposes that pose a direct threat to human life. 8. You should use the Renesas Electronics products described in this document within the range specified by Renesas Electronics, especially with respect to the maximum rating, operating supply voltage range, movement power voltage range, heat radiation characteristics, installation and other product characteristics. Renesas Electronics shall have no liability for malfunctions or damages arising out of the use of Renesas Electronics products beyond such specified ranges. 9. Although Renesas Electronics endeavors to improve the quality and reliability of its products, semiconductor products have specific characteristics such as the occurrence of failure at a certain rate and

- 9. Attrough Heresas Electronics enceavors to improve the quality and reliability of its products, semiconductor products have specific characteristics such as the occurrence of failure at a certain rate and malfunctions under certain use conditions. Further, Renesas Electronics products are not subject to radiation resistance design. Please be sure to implement safety measures to guard them against the possibility of physical injury, and injury or damage caused by fire in the event of the failure of a Renesas Electronics product, such as safety design for hardware and software including but not limited to redundancy, fire control and malfunction prevention, appropriate treatment for aging degradation or any other appropriate measures. Because the evaluation of microcomputer software alone is very difficult, please evaluate the safety of the final products or system manufactured by you.
- 10. Please contact a Renesas Electronics sales office for details as to environmental matters such as the environmental compatibility of each Renesas Electronics product. Please use Renesas Electronics products in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations that regulate the inclusion or use of controlled substances, including without limitation, the EU RoHS Directive. Renesas Electronics assumes no liability for damages or losses occurring as a result of your noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations.
- 11. This document may not be reproduced or duplicated, in any form, in whole or in part, without prior written consent of Renesas Electronics.
- 12. Please contact a Renesas Electronics sales office if you have any questions regarding the information contained in this document or Renesas Electronics products, or if you have any other inquiries.
- (Note 1) "Renesas Electronics" as used in this document means Renesas Electronics Corporation and also includes its majority-owned subsidiaries
- (Note 2) "Renesas Electronics product(s)" means any product developed or manufactured by or for Renesas Electronics.



SALES OFFICES

Renesas Electronics Corporation

http://www.renesas.com

Refer to "http://www.renesas.com/" for the latest and detailed information. Renesas Electronics America Inc. 2880 Scott Boulevard Santa Clara, CA 995050-2554, U.S.A. Tel: +1-408-588-6000, Fax: +14-08-588-6130 Renesas Electronics Canada Limited 1010 Nicholson Road, Newmarket, Ontario L3Y 9C3, Canada Tel: +1-905-898-5441, Fax: +1-905-898-3220 Renesas Electronics Europe Limited Dukes Meadow, Millboard Road, Bourne End, Buckinghamshire, SL8 5FH, U.K Tel: +44-1628-585-100, Fax: +44-1628-585-900 Renesas Electronics Europe GmbH Arcadiastrasse 10, 40472 Düsseldorf, Germany Tel: +49-211-65030, Fax: +44-1628-585-900 Renesas Electronics (China) Co., Ltd. 7th Floor, Quantum Plaza, No.27 ZhiChunt, U Haidian District, Beijing 100083, P.R.China Tel: +86-10-8235-1155, Fax: +86-10-8235-7679 Renesas Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Unit 204, 205, AZIA Center, No.1233 Lujiazui Ring Rd., Pudong District, Shanghai 200120, China Tel: +86-25877-1818, Fax: +852 2866-90229044 Renesas Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Unit 1001-1613, 16/F., Tower 2, Grand Century Place, 193 Prince Edward Road West, Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong Tel: +852-2886-9318, Fax: +852 2866-90229044 Renesas Electronics Taiwan Co., Ltd. 1157, No. 385, Fu Shing North Road, Taipei, Taiwan Tel: +886-2-8175-9900, Fax: +886 2-8175-9670 Renesas Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. 1163, No.385, Fu Shing North Road, Taipei, Taiwan Tel: +886-2-8175-9900, Fax: +886 2-8175-9670 Renesas Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. 1175, No.385, Fu Shing North Road, Taipei, Taiwan Tel: +856-2-8173-0200, Fax: +856 2-8175-9670 Renesas Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. 1176, Samik Lavied Or Bidly, IZ02-Yooksam-Dong, Kangnam-Ku, Seoul 135-080, Korea Tel: +650-55930, Fax: +856-2878-8001 Renesas Electronics Korea Co., Ltd. 1177, Samik Lavied Or Bidly, IZ02-Yooksam-Dong, Kangnam-Ku, Seoul 135-080, Korea Tel: +826-2-8175-9300, Fax: +886-2-8176-9670

Notice